
AGENDA 
DOWNERS GROVE LIQUOR COMMISSION 

NOVEMBER 7, 2024 
CIVIC CENTER BETTY CHEEVER COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

6:30P.M. 

I Call to Order 

II Roll Call 

III Approval of Minutes of October 3, 2024 Liquor Commission Meeting 

IV Application Hearing 

DG Food & Liquor Mart 
2027 Ogden Avenue 
Class P-1 

V New Business 

VI Old Business 

VII Comments from the public 

VIII Adjournment 

J\ liquor\2024-Liq-Com\Agenda.24\ I 1-07-24 



DOWNERS GROVE LIQUOR COMMISSION 
BETTY CHEEVER COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

850 CURTISS STREET 

Thursday, October 3, 2024 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Johnson called the October 3, 2024 Liquor Commission meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

II. ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

STAFF: 

OTHERS: 

Ms. Kastory, Mr. Mehta, Ms. Saucedo, Mr. Shah Chairman Johnson 

Mr. Fenton, Ms. Rutledge 

Carol Kuchynka, Liaison to the Liquor Commission 

Chandrakant Patel, Umesh Patel, Court Reporter 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chairman Johnson asked for approval of the minutes for the September 5, 2024 Liquor Commission 
meeting and asked members if there were any corrections, changes or additions. 

Hearing no additional changes, corrections or additions, the September 5, 2024 minutes of the Liquor 
Commission meeting were approved as written. 

Chairman Johnson reminded those present that this evening's meeting was being recorded on 
Village-owned equipment. Staff was present to keep minutes for the record . 

IV. APPLICATION FOR LIQUOR LICENSE 

Chairman Johnson made the following statements: 

"The next order of business is to conduct a public hearing for liquor license applications. For the benefit 
of all present, I would like to state that this Commission does not determine the granting or denial of the 
issuance of any license. We may, at the end of each hearing, make a finding or recommendation with 
respect to the application. If necessary, the Commission may adjourn a hearing to a later date in order to 
have benefit of further information." 

"At the conclusion of the hearing, the Commission will determine any recommendations it wishes to 
make to the Liquor Commissioner" . 

"The Liquor Commissioner, who is the Mayor of Downers Grove, will, pursuant to Section 3-12 of the 
Ordinance, render decisions regarding issuance of available licenses." 

"Hearings by this Commission are held according to the following format: 1) reading of information 
pertinent to the application, 2) comments from the applicant, 3) discussion by the Commission, 4) 
comments from staff, 5) comments from the public, and 6) motion and finding by the Commission." 



Corner Pantrv - 4240 Main Street 

Chairman Johnson stated that the next order of business was an application from Swanokhi, Inc. d/b/a 
Corner Pantry located at 4240 Main Street. He stated that the applicant is seeking a Class "P-1, full 
alcohol, off-premise consumption liquor license. 

Chairman Johnson asked that any individual(s) representing the applicant step forward and be seated. He 
asked that any individual(s) giving testimony, state and spell their name for the record, indicate their 
affiliation with the establishment and be sworn in by the court reporter. 

Mr. Chandrakant Patel was sworn in by the court reporter. Mr. Patel introduced himself as the purchaser 
of the Corner Pantry. 

Chairman Johnson asked him to explain the operation and how it pertains to her license request. 

Mr. Patel stated that he was in the process of purchasing the existing Corner Pantry and was seeking a 
liquor license. 

Chairman Johnson asked for questions from the Commission. 

Ms. Kastory asked Mr. Patel about his experience. He stated that he has worked from 2004-2007 at a gas 
station in the City of Berwyn. He stated that he also had experience working in Bellwood from 2007-
2015. He stated that he worked in Stone Park for one year and moved down to Texas, but returned to 
purchase this business. 

Ms. Saucedo stated there were two BASSET Certificates contained in the packet and asked if they plan to 
hire any new employees. Mr. Patel stated that he is looking for help now. 

Mr. Shah stated that Downers Grove conducts control buys where an underage agent tries to make a 
purchase. He asked Mr. Patel if he had any experience with those tests. Mr. Patel replied yes. 

Mr. Shah asked if he could elaborate on those tests. Mr. Patel stated that he plans to post signs about 
allowable sales hours. He stated that all employees will be instructed to request identification from those 
appearing under 40. He stated that they will not sell to people who may be trying to purchase liquor for a 
minor. He stated that they will refuse sales to those who appear drunk. Mr. Shah replied that his 
question was about his experience with police tests. He stated that many licensees fail a control buy 
where they fail to request identification. He stated that every single purchase should have an id 
requested. 

Mr. Mehta stated asked Mr. Patel if he currently operates an existing store. Mr. Patel replied no. He 
stated that he sold it, moved to Austin, TX and is now coming back. 

Mr. Mehta was concerned that this location is in close proximity to the local high school. Mr. Patel 
replied he was aware of that. Mr. Mehta stated that kids might try to buy alcohol. Mr. Patel stated that 
there are not exterior cameras, but he plans to put them out. He wanted to be sure that kids are not trying 
to get older adults to buy them alcohol. 

Mr. Mehta noted that the Village will also send in minors to test the establishment. Mr. Patel agreed. 

Mr. Mehta stated that licensees who get caught selling to minors often give random excuses for the 
violation. Mr. Mehta stated that that Village's agent will give the id. Mr. Patel stated that the police 



came into his store and he did not sell liquor to a minor. Ms. Kuchynka stated that Mr. Patel had 
informed her that he was tested by Cook County. 

Mr. Mehta noted his concern with the proximity to the high school. 

Ms. Kuchynka stated that the Corner Pantry has been tested twice with no control buy violations. She 
noted that there was a break in tests due to Covid. 

Mr. Patel stated that the current Corner Pantry is about 90% liquor. He stated that he plans to turn it 
more into a convenience store. Mr. Mehta stated that it was a former White Hen Pantry location. Ms. 
Kuchynka replied yes. Ms. Kuchynka pull up the floor plan on the large screen. 

Chairman Johnson stated that the location sold alcohol. He asked Mr. Patel if the property was purchased. 
Mr. Patel replied that he purchased only the business and will be leasing the site. 

Chairman Johnson asked Mr. Patel if there has been any interruption in the sale of alcohol. Ms. 
Kuchynka stated that there has been no change in ownership to date. She stated that Mr. Patel would 
need to complete the application process. She believed that the transition is expected to coincide with 
the upcoming November 1st renewal. 

Chairman Johnson asked Mr. Patel if the cooler doors lock. Mr. Patel replied no. He stated that he 
plans to put a chain across the cooler doors. 

Chairman Johnson stated that Mr. Patel's training materials indicate that he will hold quarterly refresher 
training and noted that new employees must be BASSET certified. Mr. Patel stated that he will also have 
signage posted that employee' s see daily about checking id's, make sure they do not sell to underage. 
Chairman Johnson stated that he could never remind staff too much. 

Chairman Johnson asked Mr. Patel if his has already started and noted it commenced on June 3rd
. Mr. 

Patel replied no, not until everything is approved. Ms. Kuchynka stated that the lease will be assigned 
from the current owner to Mr. Patel. 

Chairman Johnson asked if staff had any comments concerning the application . Ms. Kuchynka stated 
that factors affecting the finding or recommendation from this evenings meeting include receipt of an 
updated Certificate of Occupancy, insurance, receipt of the annual fee, satisfactory background checks 
and employee certifications. 

Chairman Johnson asked for comments from the public. There were none. 

Hearing the testimony given in this case, Chairman Johnson asked for a recommendation from the 
Commission concerning its finding of "qualified" or "not qualified" with respect to their request for a 
Class P-1 liquor license. 

MR. MEHTA MOVED TO FIND SWANOKHI, INC. D/B/A BUBBLY SIDE OF LIFE LOCATED AT 
4240 MAIN STREET QUALIFIED FOR A CLASS "P-1 ", FULL ALCOHOL, OFF-PREMISE 
CONSUMPTION LIQUOR LICENSE. MS. KASTORY SECONDED. 

Aye: Mr. Mehta, Ms. Kastory, Ms. Saucedo, Mr. Shah, Chairman Johnson 

Nay: None 

Abstain : None 

MOTION CARRIED: 5:0:0 



V. NEW BUSINESS 

Chairman Johnson asked if there was any discussion, update from staff or comments from the 
Commission regarding any new business. 

Ms. Kuchynka stated that there will be a meeting held on November 7t1,_ 

Ms. Kuchynka advised that Jeff Dietrich has been appointed to the Liquor Commission in the place of 
Ms. Rutledge who will be moving to the new Planning and Zoning Commission. 

VI. OLD BUSINESS 

Chairman Johnson asked if there was any discussion, update from staff or comments from the 
Commission regarding any old business. 

Ms. Kuchynka advised that she is in the process of liquor license renewals which are due by tomorrow. 
She stated that those received after 4:30 PM, will be subject to a $370 late fee . She stated that the CVS 
on Ogden Avenue has closed and relinquished the license. 

VII. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

There were none. 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

Concluding business for the evening, Chairman Johnson called for a motion to adjourn. Mr. Mehta 
moved to adjourn the October 3, 2024 meeting. The meeting was adjourned by acclimation at 6:44 p.m. 



    
     

    

    

         
         

         

 
                   

 

 
              

  

    

    

    

          
   

    

  

    
     

 

 
                

     
   
    
   



  
                  
   

  

                 
                 

                 
                 
             

   
                

                
   

     
            

 

                
               

                
                

 



 

  
   

   
 

  
  

  
 

   
   

 

 

  
  

   
 

 

   

   
   

   
    

       
     

       

   

              
                

             
             

                 
              
               

           

             

           

 

   

   







          

                     
          

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                  
 

 

 

       

       

           

       

                 
          

                  
                

                  

       

       

           

       

                 
          

         

                  

        

        

            

        



             

   

                  
         

                    
            

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                 

       

      

           

       

                 
          

                   
 

                   
             

         

            

        

           





I. 

2. 

DG LIQ-FORM I/Liquor Manager 

VILLAGE OF DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS 
LIQUOR MANAGER APPLICATION 

Name of Liquor License Applicant/Holder: _ _,._.rQS
"""""

� ... -..2,._../d__.___::V._n-:. .. --..._-\--Q_._A:;-=a ..... �-Sh � V Fa-:}e1j 
Doing Business As: (f2 (i- �l on:! 

Address: Q.o2'1: t:::.@doo J)r,.e , 
t---19 ( '()V"' ()b & 

Phone: €,fr. q€B:- �K Liquor License Number: ________ _

Manager: R::al46hk�Y Pa:iel 
(First) (Middle) (Last) 

Residence Address:__, 

(Street Address) (City) 

Phone: 

(State) (Zip) 

Ifless than one year, previous residence: _____________ __,__ __ 

Citizenship: ( }SA: If naturalized, date/place of naturalization: W@< :6±: JO ').o2- /
Date of Birth: ........,,....._� Place of Birth: 

Social Security #: river's License# and State: 

Number of hours per week of employment (35 minimum) HD � 

3. Liquor Handling Experience

Name and address (city, state) of any other liquor establishment in which you have been employed, position held and dates of
employment experience:

f. (lliyif:Y) :foloc:<cco C9:?,v-e, on1 e--so;;,v
::1516 0. CA€t5' Ai-e2 

I 
1n y-i -00 -:j:t,,. �056 (

0,sr\•� (fufV\,''1r a:ot� 

'Jo21- 2o24 

() • g-::fu-(Q :::P•bcae'.\t l-1AJVV �j?. _26 I 8-- '202-J
%33 k�e\ol QJ £"u20� . vt"A-'21 

Return to: Liaison to the Liquor Commission 
VILLAGE OF DOWNERS GROVE 
801 Burlington Avenue 
Downers Grove, IL 60515 









   

     
   

               
  

    
   

   

             

                 
  

           
   

              
             

 

          

 
  

 

 
 

  
  

     
   

      

 

 











    

                 
                

                 
                

     

      

               
            

            
              

    

              
              
           

       

               
               

                 
              

          

      

 

































   
  

 

 
 

  

  
    

       
        

    
     
     
        

     
      

      
       

 


	Agenda_11.07.24
	App-Pkt - NEEDS Redacting_Redacted



